
FOREST PRESERVE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA -- 12/12/2023 at 9:30 AM 
1504 3rd Ave Rock Island, IL – County Building, Third Floor Chambers 

I. Roll Call:

II. Old Business:  Executive Committee minutes from November 14, 2023* pg 2

III. Claims:*
Forest Preserve General Fund claims @ $175,367.71 pg 7
Liability Fund claims @ $55.50 pg 32
Dev of Forest & Const Imp Fund claims @ $42,604.77 pg 34

Niabi Zoo Fund claims @ $191,627.89 pg 16 
Audit Fund claims @ $6,000.00 pg 33
Treasurer’s Disbursements $623,640.21 pg 35

Claims and Treasurer’s Disbursements totaling $1,039,296.08 

IV. Transfers:
Consider Transfers of Appropriations* pg 36

V. Resolutions:
Consider a resolution regarding the Designation of Banks or Other Depositories* pg 37
Consider a resolution regarding FY 24 Illiniwek Recreation Trail Grant Appropriations* pg 39
Consider a resolution regarding FY 24 Niabi Zoo Fund Prairie Dog Grant Appropriations* pg 40
Consider a resolution regarding FY 24 Niabi Zoo fund African Painted Dog Grant Appropriations* pg 41
Consider a resolution regarding FY 24 Niabi Zoo Improvements ARPA Grant Appropriations* pg 42

VI. Ordinances:
No Ordinances to consider this month

VII. Public comment:

VIII   Other Business: 
        Consider 2024 regular meeting dates and holidays* pg 43

 Consider Jeffrey Craver, Director, as the District’s FOIA Officer for calendar year 2024 
 Consider Holiday Policy* pg 44

 Consider Vacation and Other Leaves Policy Other than PLAWA* pg 46
 Consider Regular Part-time & Temporary Employee Pay Policy* pg 49
 Consider Paid Leave for All Workers Policy* pg 51
 Other business as needed 

IX. Reports:   Approval of all routine reports: 
District Budget Performance Report* pg 55
April Palmer – Auditor’s Reports* pg 72
Mike Petersen - Illiniwek report
Lee Jackson – Niabi Zoo report* pg 81

Nick Camlin – Treasurer’s Report* pg 69
Jay Verstraete and Todd Collins pg 78 – Indian Bluff Reports* 
Ben Mills – Loud Thunder report* pg 79
Jeff Craver – Director’s report* pg 83

The Forest Preserve Executive Committee may enter a Closed Session for the following: 
5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (1) – The appointment employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body or 
legal counsel for the public body, including hearing testimony on a complaint lodged against an employee of the public body or against legal counsel for 
the public body to determine its validity.  
5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (2) – Collective negotiating matters between the public body and its employees or their representatives, or deliberations concerning 
salary schedules for one or more classes of employees. 
5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (5)-Discussion of the purchase or lease of real property for the use of the public body, including meetings held for the purpose of 
discussing whether a particular parcel should be acquired. 
* items are in members’ packets

The next meeting of the Forest Preserve Executive Committee will be held at Rock Island County Building,
Rock Island, Illinois on Tuesday, January 9th , 2024 at 9:30 AM. 

01



November 14, 2023 Page 1 

FOREST PRESERVE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
NOVEMBER 14, 2023 

 
                  
PRESENT: Committee members –L. Moreno, D. Mielke, K. Swanson, E. Sowards, R. Simmer, 
J. Woods. 
 
ABSENT: C. Layer. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Jeff Craver, District Director; Mike Petersen, Illiniwek Ranger; Lee Jackson, 
Niabi Zoo Director; Ben Mills, Loud Thunder Ranger; Amanda Van Daele, Chief Deputy 
Auditor. 
 
President Swanson called the monthly meeting of the Forest Preserve Executive Committee to 
order at 9:38 AM on Tuesday, November 14, 2023, in the 3rd floor chambers of the Rock 
Island County Building, Rock Island, Illinois. 
 
L. Moreno, K. Swanson, E. Sowards, R. Simmer, J. Woods, D. Mielke. 
TOTAL PRESENT 6 
C. Layer 
TOTAL ABSENT 1 
 
President Swanson called for a motion approving the October Committee meeting. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Moreno moved to approve the October Committee meeting minutes. Dr. Simmer 
seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the claims and treasurer’s disbursements in 
the amount of $344,202.50. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the claims and treasurer’s disbursements in the 
amount of $344,202.50. Mr. Mielke seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the fiscal year 2024 transfers of 
appropriation. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the fiscal year 2024 transfers of appropriation. Dr. 
Moreno seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 

02



November 14, 2023 Page 2 

President Swanson called for a motion to approve the resolutions regarding Niabi Zoo 
Donations Appropriations, and Niabi Zoo Fund Generator Grant appropriations. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the resolutions regarding Niabi Zoo Donations 
Appropriations, and Niabi Zoo Fund Generator Grant appropriations. Dr. Moreno seconded the 
motion. 
 
Mr. Craver stated that there were a couple typos on the resolutions in packet. There is a hand 
out that has the corrected resolutions. 
 
AMEND: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the corrected resolutions regarding Niabi Zoo 
Donations Appropriations, and Niabi Zoo Fund Generator Grant appropriations. Dr. Moreno 
seconded the amended motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the resolution regarding Defining a 
Responsible Bidder. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Moreno moved to approve the resolution regarding Defining a Responsible 
Bidder. Ms. Woods seconded the motion. 
 
Dr. Simmer asked what the change to the document was. 
 
Mr. Craver answered that there was a redline copy in the packet. It shows that the District now 
requires a surety bond on projects over $50,000.00. That is required by state statute. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the Abatement Ordinance pursuant to 
ordinance #11-01-17 in the amount of $344,202.50. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the Abatement Ordinance pursuant to ordinance 
#11-01-17 in the amount of $344,202.50. Ms. Woods seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the Abatement Ordinance pursuant to 
ordinance #2016-0401 in the amount of $356,175.00. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Sowards moved to approve the Abatement Ordinance pursuant to ordinance 
#2016-0401 in the amount of $356,175.00. Mr. Mielke seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 

03



November 14, 2023 Page 3 

President Swanson made three calls for public comment. There was no request for public 
comment. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the modification to the purchase card 
policies & procedures. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Miekle moved to approve the modification to the purchase card policies & 
procedures. Dr. Simmer seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Craver stated that the modification was added as a best practice. The District will not allow 
employees to purchase gift cards with their District purchase card. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to purchase a walk-in freezer for Niabi Zoo in the 
amount of $43,508.00 from A&A Refrigeration. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the purchase of a walk-in freezer for Niabi Zoo in the 
amount of $43,508.00 from A&A Refrigeration. Mr. Mielke seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the agreement with Klingner & Associates 
in the amount of $33,500.00 for the Niabi Zoo Big Cat Enclosure. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the agreement with Klingner & Associates in the 
amount of $33,500.00 for the Niabi Zoo Big Cat Enclosure. Dr. Moreno seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called on Mr. Craver to discuss the pavement coring results and estimate 
of cost. 
 
Mr. Craver stated that IMEG reviewed some of the District’s roads, and gave 
recommendations and an estimate. Will need to continue to keep gates closed during the 
winter. The District does have some decent bases in a few of the roads, but, being chip and 
seal roads, and depending on what kind of winter comes along, any cracks or ruts that happen 
will allow moisture to get in there and the more problems the District will have with the roads. 
Hopefully, in the future the District will be able to address this issue. There are several options 
in regards to that, which will depend on what kind of access the District wants to provide and 
how the District wants to maintain those roads. 
 
President Swanson called on Mr. Petersen to discuss the Dorrance Park restroom and 
building improvements. 
 

04



November 14, 2023 Page 4 

Mr. Petersen stated that there are two parking lots at Dorrance Park. It’s a congestion issue on 
week nights due to the sports teams that utilize the park’s facilities. People are parking on the 
roads coming into the park as well because the lots are not enough to handle the volume of 
vehicles. There have been many close calls over the years. The restrooms are on the opposite 
side of the parking lots from the ball diamonds. This placement is a big safety issue with kids 
running to the restrooms, and people going in between games while vehicles are moving in 
and out of the lots. In order to address these issues, and make the area much safer, staff has 
worked with Klingner and Associates to come up with a layout for the area. This plan would 
call for a new building that combined the concessions and restroom, and a walking path. The 
current concession and restroom buildings are very old and in disrepair. 
 
President Swanson stated that the organization that primarily uses this facility, URICRA, could 
be partnered with to fundraise for this project. URICRA may also consider adding in a half 
hour buffer between games to help ease that congestion. 
 
Dr. Moreno stated that there are also funds through the state that can help in these situations 
because of the involvement of URICRA. What is the estimate for the project? 
 
Mr. Petersen stated that the estimate is around $800,000.00. Have been in contact with 
URICRA. They are currently going through a transitional phase. They are willing to be involved 
in the project, and I’ll be meeting with others in regards to this project, including Eric Sorenson. 
 
Dr. Simmer mentioned that there are some big corporations in that part of the county that 
could be approached. 
 
President Swanson called on Mr. Mills to discuss the technical memo for Loud Thunder Deer 
Haven restroom building improvements. 
 
Mr. Mills stated that the Deer Haven campground has been very popular, and brought lots of 
new folks out to the preserve. There is a shelter with restrooms in that campground that has 
had to be closed due to the toilets not reliably working, and some structural concerns. With the 
increased use of the campgrounds and preserve, more showers and restrooms are needed to 
accommodate the volume of people. Strand and Associates came out to look at the area and 
existing infrastructure to give an opinion. They recommended demolishing the building and 
starting fresh. Strand did give an estimate for demolition, but Loud Thunder staff is perfectly 
capable of tearing down the building, and saving the District thousands of dollars. Staff will 
also be able to use some of the salvaged material to reinforce other areas around the 
preserve. 
 
Dr. Simmer asked if the current septic field and well will be able to handle an additional 
shower building. 
 
Mr. Mills stated that it should be able to handle an additional shower building. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve moving forward with Mr. Mills’ plans for the 
Deer Haven restroom facility as proposed. 

05



November 14, 2023 Page 5 

 
MOTION: Dr. Moreno moved to approve moving forward with Mr. Mills’ plans for the Deer 
Haven restroom facility as proposed. Ms. Sowards seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the routine reports of the District 
Department heads. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Mielke moved to approve the routine reports of the District Department heads. 
Ms. Sowards seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called the meeting adjourned at 10:10 AM. 
 
Submitted by:  
Cassie Sullivan 
Forest Preserve Administrative Assistant 

06



07



08



09



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88


	2023 11-14 Committee minutes.pdf
	FOREST PRESERVE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES
	NOVEMBER 14, 2023




